

JIYUL KIM

jiyulkim@gmail.com, jiykim@oberlin.edu

BIO NARRATIVE: Jiyul Kim retired from the U.S. Army in 2009 after over 28 years of service. He was an intelligence officer and a Northeast Asia Foreign Area Officer with specialization in Japan and the Koreas. He has served in troop, staff, policy, and teaching positions in Korea, Japan, Germany, and the U.S. His final assignment was as the Director of Asian Studies and Regional Studies Coordinator at the U.S. Army War College. He has been teaching history at Oberlin College in Ohio since 2012 as a Visiting Assistant Professor/Instructor of History. His publications deal with history, archaeology, policy, strategy, culture, and military issues.

EDUCATION

- 2002-09 **Ph.D. candidate in History and East Asian Languages**, Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts. “All but Dissertation” (ABD) status as of May 2004. Fields of study: Cold War (Ernest May); modern Japan (Andrew Gordon); pre-modern Korea (Sun-joo Kim); modern Korea (Carter Eckert). Dissertation: *Crisis and Ideology: Culture, Diplomacy and Mobilization in South Korea’s Quest for “National Restoration,” 1968-1972.*
- 2000-01 **U.S. Army Senior Service College Fellowship**, Korea Institute for Defense Analyses (KIDA), Seoul, Korea. Research Topic: *Continuity and Transformation in Northeast Asia and the End of American Exceptionalism: A Long-Range Outlook and U.S. Policy Implications.* See also publications.
- 1995-96 **U.S. Army Command and General Staff College**, Fort Leavenworth, Kansas.
- 1991-92 **Advanced Japanese language course**, Japanese Language Center, Foreign Service Institute, U.S. Department of State, Yokohama, Japan.
- 1990-91 **MA in Regional Studies - East Asia**, Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts. Thesis Title: *U.S. and Korea in Vietnam and the Japan-Korea Treaty: Search for Security, Prosperity and Influence* (Defense Technical Information Service AD-A237 979 available at <http://www.dtic.mil/cgi-bin/GetTRDoc?AD=ADA237979&Location=U2&doc=GetTRDoc.pdf>).
- 1988-89 **Basic Japanese language course**, Defense Language Institute, Presidio of Monterey, California.
- 1988 **U.S. Army Combined Arms and Services Staff School**, Fort Leavenworth, Kansas.
- 1988 **U.S. Army Military Intelligence Officer Advanced Course**, Fort Huachuca, Arizona.

- 1981-82 **U.S. Army Military Intelligence Officer Basic Course and Tactical Surveillance Officer Course**, Fort Huachuca, Arizona.
- 1976-81 **BA in Anthropology (Archaeology) and Biology (Marine)**, University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

- 2009 **Retired from the U.S. Army** in the rank of Colonel.
- 2004-09 **Professor of National Security, Director of Asian Studies, and Coordinator of Regional Studies**, Department of National Security and Strategy, U.S. Army War College, Carlisle Barracks, Pennsylvania. Courses taught:
- *Strategic Thinking*
 - *Theory of War and Strategy*
 - *National Security Policy and Strategy*
 - *Regional Studies Asia-Pacific*
- 2001-02 **Assignments with the Office of the Secretary of Defense (OSD)**, Washington, D.C.
- **Country Director for Maritime Southeast Asia**, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for Asian-Pacific Affairs, Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense for International Security Affairs (OASD/ISA/AP).
 - **Asia-Pacific Regional Director for Counterterrorism**, OASD/ISA/AP.
 - **Assistant Country Director for Korea Policy**, OASD/ISA/AP.
- 1998-00 **Director of Liaison, Policy, Operations, and Training**, Joint U.S. Military Affairs Group - Korea (JUSMAG-K), American Embassy, Seoul, Korea.
- 1996-98 **Assignments with U.S. Forces Korea**, Seoul, Korea.
- **Operations Plans Officer** (S3 Plans), 501st Military Intelligence Brigade (MI Bde)
 - **Executive Officer**, 524th Military Intelligence Battalion, 501st MI Bde
 - **Intelligence Analyst**, Korea-U.S. Combined Forces Command Commander-in-Chief's Initiatives Group
- 1993-95 **Assignments with Headquarters, Department of the Army**, Washington, D.C.
- **Japan/Southeast Asia Analyst**, Office of the Deputy Chief of Staff for Intelligence (ODCSI)
 - **Chief of Intelligence Watch Branch**, ODCSI
- 1992-93 **Executive Officer and Aide-de-Camp to Commanding General**, U.S. Army Japan and IX Corps, Camp Zama, Kanagawa Prefecture, Japan.
- 1992 **Practicum at the Research Institute for Peace and Security (*Heiwa anzen hoshō kenkyūjo*)**, Tokyo, Japan. Two-week practicum at a think tank that examines current security issues in Asia-Pacific and Japan.

- 1992 **Practicum at the Kanagawa Prefectural Archaeology Office (*Kanagawa kenritsu maizō bunkazai senta*)**, Yokohama, Kanagawa Prefecture, Japan. One-week practicum to learn and experience how archaeological remains are surveyed, excavated, studied, and preserved in a public Prefectural archaeology office.
- 1992 **Practicum at the Kanagawa Newspaper (*Kanagawa shinbun*)**, Yokohama, Kanagawa Prefecture, Japan. One-week practicum to observe how a regional Japanese newspaper operates. Participated in editorial discussions. Wrote a newspaper article in Japanese on my role in U.S.-Japan relations (see publications).
- 1988 **Selected as a U.S. Army Northeast Asia Foreign Area Officer (FAO)**. Three and one-half years of education and training (Japanese language, graduate school, country immersion in Japan).
- 1984-88 **Assignments with the 1st Armored Division**, Bamberg and Ansbach, Germany
- **Intelligence Officer (S2)**, 1-52 Infantry Battalion, 3rd Brigade
- **Intelligence Planning Officer** (G-2 Plans), Asst. Chief of Staff for Intelligence (G2)
- **Commander**, B Company (Signals & Electronic Intelligence), 501st Military Intelligence Battalion
- 1982-84 **Assignments with the Eighth U.S. Army (EUSA) and 2nd Infantry Division**, Korea.
- **Aerial Surveillance Officer and EUSA liaison** to the First Republic of Korea Army
- **Platoon Leader**, B Company (Ground Surveillance Radar), 102nd Military Intelligence Battalion, 2nd Infantry Division
- 1981 **Commissioned 2nd Lieutenant in Military Intelligence, Regular Army of the United States** through Army Reserve Officer Training Corps (University of Pennsylvania).

TEACHING APPOINTMENTS, FELLOWSHIPS, AND AWARDS

- 2012-present **Visiting Assistant Professor/Instructor of History**, Oberlin College. Courses taught:
2019 *Research Seminar: War, Military and the American Nation*
2016-2018 *War & Civilization*
2015 *Theory and History of War*
2012-2014 *History and the Formulation of U.S. National Security Strategy & Policy*
- 2019 **Oberlin College H. H. Powers Travel Grant** funding for 2-week research travel to China and South Korea for *The Korean War: A New History* (forthcoming 2022).
- 2019 **Oberlin College Grant-in-Aid** funding for 1-week travel to interview subjects and conduct research at the National Archives & Records Administration for *The Korean War: A New History* (forthcoming 2022).

- 2007 **U.S. Army War College Madigan Award** for best journal publication (“Pan-Korean Nationalism, Anti-Great Power-ism and U.S.-South Korean Relations.” *Japan Focus*. Dec 05.).
- 2005 **Fulbright dissertation fellowship.** Dissertation research in South Korea.
- 2002 **U.S. Army War College Professor Program**, selected for tenured professorship at the U.S. Army War College with fully funded Ph.D. studies (see Education).
- 2001 **U.S. State Department Foreign Service**, received offer for hire as Political Officer in the Foreign Service. Deferred then declined.
- 2000-2001 **U.S. Army Senior Service College Fellowship**, Senior Research Fellow, Korea Institute for Defense Analyses (KIDA), Seoul, Korea.
- 1999-2001 **Associate in Research**, Korea Institute, Harvard University.
- 1996-2001 **Adjunct Lecturer**, University of Maryland - Asia Division, Departments of Asian Studies and Government, Seoul, Korea. Taught Asian Studies 301: *The Japanese* in 1997 and 1998.
- 1996 **Smythe Award for Excellence in Military History**, U.S. Army Command and General Staff College.
- 1996 **Military Historian**, official U.S. Army designation (Additional Skill Identifier 5X).
- 1991 **Joseph Fletcher Memorial Award for Distinguished Writing and Best MA Thesis**, Regional Studies East Asia, Harvard University.
- 1991 **Danforth Center Award for Distinction in Teaching**, Harvard University.
- 1991 **Teaching Fellow, Harvard University**, Department of History. Taught two undergraduate sections in the course, *America and Vietnam, 1945-1975*.
- 1990-91 **Full Graduate School funding at Harvard University**, MA degree, U.S. Army.
- 1990 **Defense Language Institute Martin Kellogg Award** for exceptional effort and **Provost Award for Category IV language** for scholastic achievement (Japanese).
- 1979-2009 **Military Awards and Qualification Badges:** Legion of Merit, Defense Meritorious Service Medal, Army Meritorious Service Medal (4), Army Commendation Medal (3), Joint Service Achievement Medal, Army Achievement Medal (2), Joint Meritorious Unit Award, National Defense Service Medal (2), Global War on Terrorism Service Medal, Korea Defense Service Medal, Overseas ribbon (4), Parachutist badge, Air Assault badge, Army Staff Badge, Office of the Secretary of Defense Badge.

PUBLICATIONS

- 2022 *The Korean War: A New History*, co-author with Sheila Miyoshi Jager (author of *Brothers At War: The Unending Conflict in Korea*, Norton/Profile, 2013). Under contract with Cambridge University Press.
- 2017 “North Korea in the Vietnam War.,” In Stephen Sherman, ed. *Year of the Cock, 1969*. RADIX Press, pp. 108-145.
- 2015 Chapter 6, “Strategic Culture of the Republic of Korea.” In Jeffrey Lantis, ed. *Strategic Cultures and Security Policies in the Asia-Pacific*. Routledge, pp. 105-124.
- 2014 “Strategic Culture of the Republic of Korea.” In Jeffrey Lantis, ed. *Strategic Cultures and Security Policies in the Asia-Pacific: Interpreting Implications of the “Peaceful Rise” and “Pivot.”* Special issue of *Contemporary Security Policy*, 35.2, (Aug 2014) pp. 270-289.
- 2014 “Chapter 21: United Nations Command and Korean Augmentation.” In Donald Boose and James Matray, eds. *Ashgate Research Companion to the Korean War*. Ashgate Publishing, pp. 283-296.
- 2013 Review of Balazs Szalontai, “In the Shadow of Vietnam: A New Look at North Korea’s Militant Strategy,” *Journal of Cold War Studies* 14.4 (Fall 2012). *H-Diplo*. <http://www.h-net.org/~diplo/reviews/PDF/AR413.pdf>
- 2011 “The Significance of the Korean War in World History.” *The 61st Anniversary of the Korean War International Academic Seminar*. ” Taegu, Republic of Korea: Chungsongdae yonguso, pp. 63-90 (in Korean and English).
- 2010 “Dimension culturelle de la stratégie et de la politique [Cultural Dimensions of Strategy and Policy].” *Air and Space Power Journal* (French edition). Autumn 2010. (http://www.au.af.mil/au/afri/aspj/apjinternational/aspj_f/digital/pdf/articles/2010_3/kim_f.pdf (English version: http://www.airpower.maxwell.af.mil/apjinternational/apj-af/2010/2010-3/eng/2010_3_06-E-Kim.pdf)
- 2009 “Dimensiones Culturales de Estrategia y Política [Cultural Dimensions of Strategy & Policy].” *Air and Space Power Journal* (Spanish edition). Third Quarter 2009 (Oct 2009). (<http://www.airpower.maxwell.af.mil/apjinternational/apj-s/2009/3tri09/kim.htm>). (English version: <http://www.airpower.maxwell.af.mil/apjinternational/apj-s/2009/3tri09/kimeng.htm>)
- 2009 *Cultural Dimensions of Strategy & Policy*. Letort Paper, U.S. Army War College Strategic Studies Institute (May 2009). <http://www.strategicstudiesinstitute.army.mil/pdffiles/PUB919.pdf>

- 2007 With Sheila Miyoshi Jager. "The Korean War After the Cold War: Commemorating the Armistice Agreement in South Korea." In Sheila Miyoshi Jager and Rana Mitter, eds. *Ruptured Histories: War, Memory and the Post-Cold War in Asia*. Harvard University Press, pp. 233-265.
- 2006 With Sheila Miyoshi Jager. "Good Brothers, Model Soldiers: South Korea's Blockbuster War Films in the Era of the post-Korean War." *The Sigur Center Asia Papers: The Military and South Korean Society*. Young-Key Kim Renaud, Richard Grinker and Kirk Larsen, eds. Hahn Moo-Sook Colloquium in the Korean Humanities, Sigur Center for Asian Studies, The Elliott School of International Affairs, George Washington University.
<http://www.gwu.edu/~eall/special/hms2005.htm>
- 2005 "Pan-Korean Nationalism, Anti-Great Power-ism and U.S.-South Korean Relations." *Japan Focus*. Dec 05. <http://www.japanfocus.org/~jiyul-kim/1679/article.html>. (In Korean: http://newsandpeople.com/article/view.php?id=all_list_total&no=3852; http://www.ohmynews.com/NWS_Web/View/at_pg.aspx?CNTN_CD=A0000299283; In French: <http://www.korea-is-one.org/spip.php?article2269>). Madigan Award (see Awards)
- 2004 "The South Korean Foreign Ministry Archives." In Choong Nam Yoon, ed. *Studies on the Korean Materials in the Harvard-Yenching Library*. Harvard-Yenching Library Studies. Seoul, Korea: Kyongin Publishers, pp. 327-338.
- 2002 With Michael Finnegan. "Small But Strong: The Republic of Korea Approaches RMA [Revolution in Military Affairs]." *Joint Forces Quarterly* (Spring 2002), pp. 33-40.
http://www.dtic.mil/doctrine/jel/jfq_pubs/0830.pdf
- 2001 Book review of *The Korean War: Volume One* by the Korea Institute of Military History (Lincoln, Nebraska: University of Nebraska Press, 2000), *Joint Forces Quarterly* (Spring-Summer 2001, No. 28), pp. 117-119. Book review commissioned by *Joint Forces Quarterly*.
http://www.dtic.mil/doctrine/jel/jfq_pubs/2328.pdf
- 2001 "Continuity and Transformation in Northeast Asia and the End of *American Exceptionalism*: A Long-Range Outlook and U.S. Policy Implications." *Korean Journal of Defense Analysis*, 13.1 (Autumn 2001) pp. 229-261. http://www.kida.re.kr/data/kjda/FF407025Y_010.pdf. (In Russian: http://world.lib.ru/k/kim_o_i/fr3.shtml;
<http://uz.koresaram.doira.uz/Articles/ArticleInfo.aspx?Id=de873c6f-24ee-4ddb-87cc-63412b971675>)
- 1992 "Japan and America: Playing a role in bridging the two nations." (*Nippon to Beikoku: Hashi Watashi Yakuni*). *Kanagawa Shinbun*, 20 March 1992, p. 27 (in Japanese).
- 1988 "Chapter 4: Application of Archaeological Theory." In John L. Cotter, Roger W. Moss, Bruce Gill, and Jiyul Kim. *The Walnut Street Prison Workshop*. Philadelphia, PA: The Athenaeum of Philadelphia, pp. 51-95.

- 1988 “Training MI [Military Intelligence] Tactical Teams to Survive: Concept for Intelligence Team Tactical ARTEP [Army Training and Evaluation Program].” *Military Intelligence*, Vol. 14, No. 4 (October 1988), pp. 42-46.
- 1988 With Lynn M. Burwell. “Teampack Operator Training.” In *Military Intelligence*, Vol. 14, No. 3 (July 1988), pp. 39-40.
- 1978 “The Applicability of South’s Methods as Tested on the Walnut Street Prison Site.” In *The Conference on Historic Site Archaeology Papers 1977* (Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology, University of South Carolina), Vol. 12, 1978, 101-144.

TALKS & LECTURES

- Sep 2019 Public commentary and discussion on the art exhibit *E Pluribus* memorializing 9-11 and its impact, Firelands Association for the Visual Arts (Oberlin, Ohio).
- Oct 2018 Public lecture on “U.S. Global Engagement and the Military” as part of the *Great Decisions* lecture series sponsored by Kendal at Oberlin Retirement Community (Oberlin, Ohio).
- Mar 2018 Public lecture with Sheila Miyoshi Jager on “Prospects for Peace & War in Korea,” Oberlin College (Oberlin, Ohio)
- Dec 2017 Public lecture on “Prospects for Afghanistan and Pakistan” as part of the *Great Decisions* lecture series sponsored by Kendal at Oberlin Retirement Community (Oberlin, Ohio).
- Oct 2017 Public lecture on “Conflict in South China Sea” as part of the *Great Decisions* lecture series sponsored by Kendal at Oberlin Retirement Community (Oberlin, Ohio).
- Dec 2016 Public lecture on “The Koreas” as part of the *Great Decisions* lecture series sponsored by Kendal at Oberlin Retirement Community (Oberlin, Ohio).
- Oct 2016 Public lecture on “The Korean War: The war that changed the post-World War II world” sponsored by the Oberlin Heritage Center (Oberlin, Ohio).
- Oct 2014 Presentation on the strategic culture of the Republic of Korea at a workshop on “Strategic Cultures in the Asia-Pacific” hosted by the East-West Center (Washington, DC).
- Oct 2014 Lectures on Pre-Modern and Modern Korean History at the Korea Studies Workshop for K-12 teachers hosted by the University of Massachusetts at Lowell (Waltham, Massachusetts).

- Jun 2011 Presentation on “The Significance of the Korean War in World History” at *The 61st Anniversary of the Korean War International Academic Seminar* convened by the North Kyöngsang Province and the Korean Military Academy at Yoengcheon (Taegu, Republic of Korea). (See publications)
- Jun 2010 Presentation on “Korean Memory of the Korean War” at the Harry S. Truman Presidential Library (Independence, Missouri) conference on *New Documents and New Histories: Twenty-First Century Perspectives on the Korean War*.
- May 2010 Guest professor on the cultural dimensions of policy and strategy for the National Security Policy Program, U.S. Army War College (Carlisle, Pennsylvania).
- Jan 2007 Guest Lecturer at the Indian Army War College (Mhow, India). Lecture on the cultural dimensions of policy and strategy.
- Jan 2006 Presentation on the future of U.S.-South Korean relations at a Department of State conference on the future of U.S.-Korea relations (Arlington, Virginia).
- Oct 2005 Co-speaker with Sheila Miyoshi Jager, Hahn Moo-Sook Colloquium in the Korean Humanities: *War and Society in South Korea*, George Washington University (Washington, D.C). Title: *Good Brothers, Model Soldiers: South Korea’s Blockbuster War Films in the Era of the post-Korean War*. (See publications)
- Oct 2005 Guest speaker, *Flashpoints on the Peninsula: The Koreas 2005*, symposium sponsored by Dickinson College and the Korea Economic Institute (Carlisle, Pennsylvania). Title: *Pan-Korean Nationalism, Anti-Great Power-ism and U.S.-South Korean Relations*. (See publications)
- Jun 2002 Guest Lecturer on the Korean War at the 2002 *West Point Summer Seminar in Military History*, U.S. Military Academy (West Point, NY). Title: *KMAG [Korea Military Advisory Group] and the Republic of Korea Army*.
- Jun 2001 Lecturer and discussant for seminar on the *Future of the Republic of Korea Navy*, Korea Institute for Defense Analyses (Seoul, Korea).

MANUSCRIPT REVIEWS

Africa Today; Contemporary Security Policy; International Review; Strategic Asia - National Bureau of Asian Research

OTHER

Local Community: *Oberlin Schools Endowment Fund Board*, Oberlin, Ohio.

Languages: Korean (LRSW); Japanese (LRS); French (R). (Listening, Reading, Speaking, Writing)